NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Gretchen G. Bennitt, APCO

Headquarters Northern Field Office

200 Litton Drive, Ste. 320 257 E. Sierra Street, Suite E

Grass Valley, CA 95945 Portola, CA 96122

(530) 274-9360/ FAX: (530) 274-7546 (530)832-0102 FAX:(530) 832-0101
NORTHERN SIERRA

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MONDAY

April 23, 2018
1:00 p.m.

SERVING THIZ COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
April 23, 2018
1:00 p.m.
This meeting will be held by videoconferencef/teleconference at the

following locations:

(Site A) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Headquarters)
200 Litton Drive, Conference Room 316
Grass Valley, California

(Site B) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Northern Office)

257 E. Sierra Street, Unit E
Portola, California
(Site C) TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
10879A Donner Pass Road, CONFERENCE ROOM
Truckee, California

All items on the agenda may be acted upon by the Board of Directors. No action will be
taken nor discussion held at the meeting on business not appearing on the posted
agenda.

I Standing Orders:
Call to Order.
Roll call and determination of quorum.

. Public Comment: For items NOT appearing on the agenda and within the

jurisdiction of the Board. The public may comment on Agenda items as they are
discussed.

lll. Consent Calendar These ltems Are Expected to Be Routine and
Noncontroversial. They Will Be Acted on By the Board at One Time Without
Discussion. Any Board Member, Staff Member, or Interested Party May Request
That an ltem Be Removed From the Consent Calendar for Discussion.

A. Approval of regular meeting minutes — March 28, 2018

IV. Administrative Report

Third Quarter Financial Reports FY2017/2018

Financial Audit Ending June 30, 2017

Engagement Letter for Financial Audit Ending June 30, 2018
Woodstove Program for Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
Woodstove Changeout Agreement with CAPCOA

moowp

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR™S MEETING

F. Approval of Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District's AB 2766 DMV
Surcharge Fund Program RFP for 2018-2019 Grant Cycle
G. Carl Moyer Agreement with California Air Resources Board for Year 20

V. Director’s Report
A. Status on Portola PM2.5 Nonattainment Area
B. Greenwaste Alternatives in Northern Sierra
C. Proposed meeting with Assemblymember Dahle

VI. Concerns of Board - The Board may at this time bring up matters it wishes to
discuss at the next Board Meeting, as long as no discussions are conducted and no
actions are taken, in compliance with the Brown Act.

Vil. Schedule next Meeting — May 21, 2018 - Videoconference/Telephone

VIil. Adjournment

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLLUMAS AND SIERRA

~



NORTHERN SIERRA AR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF HRECTOR'S MEETING

PERSONS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted by the Chairperson in a manner
consistent with the policies of the District. The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Revised
shall also be used as a general guideline for meeting protocol. District policies shall prevail
whenever they are in conflict with Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.

All Board meetings shall commence at the time stated on the agenda and shall be guided by
same.

PUBLIC COMMENT:
Provisions for permitting any individual or group to address the Board concerning any
item on the agenda of a special meeting, or to address the Board at a regular meeting

on any subject that lies within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors, shall be as
follows:

Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of fifteen (15)
minutes to each subject matter;

No boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in
boisterous conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the Chairperson, of
that person's privilege of address.

No oral presentation shall include charges or complaints against any District employee,
regardless of whether or not the employee is identified in the presentation by name or by
another reference which tends to identify. All charges or complaints against employees
shall be submitted to the Board of Directors under provisions contained in District Policy
1030.

Willful disruption of any of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall not be permitted.
If the Chairperson finds that there is in fact willful disruption of any meeting of the Board,
he/she may order the room cleared and subsequently conduct the Board's business
without the audience present. In such an event, only matters appearing on the agenda
may be considered in such a session.

After clearing the room, the Chairperson may permit those persons who, in his/her
opinion, were not responsible for the willful disruption to re-enter the meeting room.

Duly accredited representatives of the news media, whom the Chairperson finds not to
have participated in the disruption, shall be admitted to the remainder of the meeting.

Members of the public are given the opportunity to address the Board of Directors
directly at each teleconference
location.

POSTING AGENDA:

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours prior to the regular meeting at the following locations:
Eric Rood Government Center in Nevada City, The Plumas County Courthouse in Quincy, the
Litton Building in Grass Valley, the Plumas County Board of Supervisors Chambers in Quincy,
Sierra County Courthouse Square in Downieville. The agenda and board packet are
available on-line prior to the Board Meeting at www.myairdistrict.com

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIRRA



NORTHERN SIHERRA AR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEFTING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: April 23, 2018

Agenda ltem: lILA

Agenda Description: Approval of regular meeting minutes — March 26, 2018

Issues:
The Minutes are attached for Board review/comment/approval.

Requested Action:

1. Approval of Regular meeting minutes from March 26, 2018

SERVING THE COUNTILS OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NOR THERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Gretchen Bennitt, Executive Director

DISTRICT HEADQUARTER NORTHERN FIELD OFFICE

200 L.itton Drive, Suile 320 257 E. Slerra, Unit E

Mailing Address: Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2227

Grass Valley, CA 95945 Portola, CA 96122

(530) 274-9360 / FAX: (530) 274-7546 (530) 832-0102 / FAX: (630) 832-0101

email: office@myairdisirict.com or www.myairdistrict.com email: Julig@myairdistrict.com or www.myairdistrict.com
MINUTES

NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
March 26, 2018
1:00 p.m.

(Site A) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Headquarters)
200 Litton Drive, Conference Room 316
Grass Valley, California
AND

(Site B) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Northern Office)

257 E. Sierra Street, Unit E

Members Present: Members Absent:
Supervisor Roen none

Supervisor Huebner

Supervisor Sanchez

Supervisor Thrall
Supervisor Scofield
Supervisor Anderson

Standing Orders:

Call to Order. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum.

Chair Sanchez called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. A quorum was confirmed.
Gretchen Bennitt, APCO; Joe Fish, Deputy APCO were also in attendance.

Public Comment: For ltems NOT Appearing on the Agenda and Within the
Jurisdiction of the Board. The Public May Comment on Agenda Items As They
Are Discussed. Both Teleconference Sites are Allowed an Opportunity for
Public Comment.

Chair Sanchez called for public comment at all sites. There was no public comment
at any site.

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



ll. Consent Calendar These ltems Are Expected to Be Routine and Noncontroversial. They
Will Be Acted on By the Board at One Time Without Discussion. Any Board Member, Staff
Member, or Interested Party May Request That an ltem Be Removed From the Consent
Calendar for Discussion.

A. Approval of regular meeting minutes — January 22, 2018

Chair Sanchez noted that the February 26, 2018 Board meeting was cancelled due to
inclement weather. Additionally, Chair Sanchez noted that there was an error on the
minutes where the year 2016 should be modified to 2018. There was a motion to
approve the consent calendar with this modification to the date by Supetrvisor Roen.

Supervisor Thrall seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved upon a
roll call vote.

IV. Administrative Report

Chair Sanchez requested a change to the agenda as follows: ltems V.B, V.C and VI.A
should be agendized in that order following ltem IV.A. The Board unanimously approved
the change with a roll call vote.

A. Public Hearing for the Proposed Adoption of Reasonably Available Control
Technology (RACT) State Implementation Plan (SIP) Revision for Western Nevada County
8-Hour Ozone Nonattainment Area

Ms. Bennitt discussed that the public hearing for the SIP revision was released in local
papers and the District had received no comments. Chair Sanchez opened the public
hearing to accept comments on the proposed revision to the western Nevada County
Ozone SIP. There were no public comments. Chair Sanchez closed the public hearing.
Supervisor Scofield made a motion to adopt the proposed revision to the western Nevada
County 8-hour Ozone SIP and authorized the Chair to sign Resolution 2018-01. Supervisor
Anderson seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved upon a roll call
vote.

V.B. Goals and Objectives — 2018

Ms. Bennitt discussed the Goals and Objectives for the Air District. She emphasized that
the 4 goals and objectives were in addition to the overall work products of the District.

V.C. District Accomplishments - 2017
Ms. Bennitt discussed the District's accomplishments for 2017.

VI.LA Closed Session ltem — Performance Evaluation of the Air Pollution Control Officer,
Gretchen Bennitt, (Government Code Section 54957).

Nothing occurred in closed session that was required to be reported by law.

IV.B End of Year Report for FY 2016/2017

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



Ms. Bennitt presented the end of year budget for FY 2016/2017. She discussed that in
prior years, unaudited actuals were represented on a cash basis. GASB68 requires
modified accruals, which is reflected in FY 2016/2017. The Board questioned the progress
of the audit. Ms. Bennitt discussed that the audit was completed in January and they are
in the process of drafting the report. Supervisor Anderson made a motion to adopt the End
of Year Report for FY 2016/2017. Supervisor Huebner seconded the motion. The motion
was unanimously approved with a roll call vote.

. Solicitation for Application to Receive Funding From the Carl Moyer Memorial Program
(Fiscal Year 2017/2018 - Year 20) Funds

Ms. Bennitt presented the application for Year 20 of the Carl Moyer Funds. Supervisor
Huebner made a motion to authorize the Chair to sign Resolution 2018-02. Supervisor
Thrall seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved with a roll call vote.

. Portola Lease Amendment

Ms. Bennitt presented the lease amendment for the Portola office. She informed the Board
that County Counsel had reviewed and approved the amendment. Supervisor Scofield
made a motion to approve the lease amendment. Supervisor Huebner seconded the
motion. The motion was unanimously approved with a roll call vote.

. Proposal and Approval of County Contribution for FY 18/19

Ms. Bennitt discussed the three different ties available to the Board to approve for County
Contribution for FY 18/19. Supervisor Roen made a motion to keep the county contribution
amount the same as the previous year, or Method C. Supetrvisor Anderson seconded the
motion. The motion was unanimously approved with a roll call vote. Nevada County’s
contribution for FY 18/19 is $48,838.90. Sierra County’s contribution for FY 18/19 is
$1,602. Plumas County contribution for FY 18/19 is $9,893.48.

. Appointment of Basin Control Council Board Member and Alternate

Ms. Bennitt discussed that the FPPC requires that the Board annually appoint an Air
District Board member to the Mountain County Basin’s Basin Control Council (BCC). The
FPPC also requires the annual appointment of an alternate BCC member. Supervisor
Thrall made a motion to appoint Sierra County Supervisor Lee Adams as the BCC member
and Sierra County Supervisor Peter Huebner as the alternate BCC member. Supervisor

Anderson seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved with a roll call
vote.

. Carl Moyer Policy and Guidelines

The Board discussed the policy and guidelines changes. Supervisor Scofield made a
motion to approve the modifications to the District’s Policies and Guidelines. Supervisor
Huebner seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved with a roll call
vote.

g

SERVING THE: COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



V. Director’s Report
A. Status on Portola PM2.5 Nonattainment Area
Ms Bennitt provided an update to the board on the Portola PM2.5 Nonattainment area.
There was no further action taken.
B. Approval of Revision to Portola PM Emission Control Plan
Ms. Bennitt discussed that EPA had approved a revision to the emission control plan and

she included the Federal Register notice for information.  There was no turher action
taken.

C. Support letter for approval of Southem California Public Power Authority renewable power
contract with ARP-Loyalton Cogen LLC

Ms. Bennitt presented a support letter for the ARP-Loyalton Cogen LLC. There was no
further action taken.

D. Little Hoover Commission Report on Forest Health

The Board discussed the recommendations of the Little Hoover Commission Report.
There was no further action taken.

E. Sierra Club California Launches Advertising Campaign
The Board discussed the advertising campaign. There was no further action taken.

VIl. Concerns of Board - The Board may at this time bring up matters it wishes to discuss at the next

Board Meeting, as long as no discussions are conducted and no actions are taken, in compliance with
the Brown Act.

VIil. Schedule next Meeting — April 23, 2018 — Videoconference/Telephone

IX. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 2:35 P.M.

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NMORTHERN SICRRA AR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICI BOARD OF DIRFCTOR™S METTING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: April 23, 2018

Agenda ltem: IV.A

Agenda Description: Third Quarter Financial Reporis FY2017/2018

{ssues:

The Restricted and Operating reports as of March 31, 2017 are enclosed for the Board's
information and questions.

Requested Action:
Approve Third Quarter FY 2017/2018 (March 2018) Budget Reports

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:

1. Northern Sierra AQMD Restricted Fund Report, FY 17-18, March 31, 2018

5 Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Operating Budget, FY 17-18 -
March 31,2018

[ O

SERVING THE COUNTIES OIF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Operating Budget vs Actuals
Period End March 31, 2018

Resource Report

Period End
3/31/12018

Oporating (6774) End Balance, Qir 3§ 768.095 |

Operating (Payroll) End Balance, Qtr 3 $ 105.743
Operating (Gov Pay) End Balance. Q3§ 32.267
All Operating Accounts Cash Total $ 906.105
F&zvenue
Budgeted FY| Actuals to
Account # Description 2017-2018 033118

401-100-02 Fees, Permit to Operate 34,000 29,252
401-100-04 Fees, Vapor Recovery 19,000 9,980

- 401-100-05 Fees. Variance Application 500 -
401-100-06 Fees, Source Test 2,000 918
401-100-07 Fees. Prescribed Burning 18,000 14,727

401-100-10 Fees. Title V., Fed Op Permit 65,000 -
401-100-13 Fees, Fire Dept Response 1,500 200
401-100-08 Fees. Woodstove Inspections Quincy 1,500 610
405-100-01 Penalties, Permitted Source 10,000 63,475
| 405-100-02 Penalties. Open Burning 2,500 1,000
420-100-01 Gov't Funding, State Subvention 137,600 137,600
420-100-02 Gov't Funding, Subvention Supplemental 3,500 3,517
' 420-100-03 Gov't Funding, County Contrib 60,335 50,441
420-100-07  Gov't Funding. PERP Pass-Thru 18,000 21,790
420-100-04 Gov't Funding. EPA Monitoring (PM2.5) 59,500 59,500

420-100-06 Gov't Funding, EPA Special 103 grant 28,430 -
420-100-88 Gov't Funding, AB 923 Operating AB 923, Admin Fee 3,125 1,525
420-100-99 Govt. Funding. AB 2766 DMV Fees B 320,000 190,206
420-100-10 Gov't Funding, EPA Monitoring Supplemental - 20,000
420-100-11 Govt. Funding, EPA Target, Admin Fee 55,000 31,385
420-100-05 Carl Moyer, Admin Fee 25,000 25,000

421-100-16 Other Income, Sale of Asset - S
421-100-17 Other Income, Rules, Copies, Subscr. 100 19
421-100-18 Miscellaneous refunds, miscellaneous - 707
421-100-21 PERS Employee Paid Contribution 1,500 2,910
421-100-50 Other Income, Interest 5,000 7,985
Revenue Total: $ 871,0901% 672,747

Page 1

'

FY1718 Q3 Board April 23 2018 DRAFT




NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Operating Budget vs Actuals
Period End March 31, 2018

Total Expenditures

Page 2

Expenditures Salaries and Benefits (Object Level)
Budgeted FY]  Actuals to
Account # Description 2017-2018 03/31/18
SCG-100-00 Permanent Salaries 387,798 268,225
50210040 Quertime 1,000
504-100-01 Part-Time Employees 25,000 9,132
510-100-02 Medicare 5,500 3,760
510-100-11 Ca State Unemployment 2,000 448
510-100-04 Workers' Comp Insurance 6,000 324
510-100-05 PERS Retirement 57,319 47,517
510-100-12 PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability 51,812 42,919
510-100-10 PERS Employee Paid Contribution (3,300) (859)
510-100-13 PERS Health Insurance. Retired Employees 28,800 16,180
510-100-06 PERS Health Insurance 36,000 23,052
510-100-08 PERS Health Employce Portion (8,000) (8,884)
510-100-07 Dental/Vision Care 6,250 2,824
| Salaries and Benefits Total: $ 596,179 | $ 404,638 |
Expenditures Services and Supplies (Object Level)
Budgeted FY] Actuals to
Account # Description 2017-2018 | 03/31/18
520-100-01 Communications 15,000 11,291
520-100-03 IT 10,000 5,133
520-100-04 PM Monitoring Expenses (Supplies and Lab Rent) 15,000 7,846
521-100-01 Maintenance: Office Equipment 500 366
521-100-02 Maintenance: Vehicles 3,000 531
522-100-01 Rent, Structures 32,040 27,768
522-100-02 Utilities, District Offices 3,500 | 2,663
523-100-01 Office Supplies 6,000 4,418
523-100-02 References, Subscriptions 450 109
523-100-03 Postage, Shipping 1,200 532
524-100-00 Memberships 3,000 2,408
525-100-01 Prof Services: Legal 6,000 -
525-100-03 Prof Services: Bookkeeping (ADP, internal audit) 18,000 28,804
525-100-04 Prof. Services: County Auditor/GASB 45/GASB 68 4,000 909
525-100-05 Prof Services: Board 5,000 3,782
| 528-100-00  Liability Insurance 8,000 48
529-100-00 Legal Notices, Public 500 248
535-100-01 Training, Tuition 1,500 772
| 535-100-02 Travel 3,000 | 4,097
535-100-03 Gasoline 5,000 2,589
555-100-97  Miscellaneous I pE 1,000 -
535-100-04 Private car mileage 500 675
_ Services and Supplies Total: $ 142,190 | $ 104,986

FY1718 Q3 Board April 23 2018 DRAFT




NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Operating Budget vs Actuals

Period End March 31, 2018
I xpenditures Pass-thru Funds / Internal Programs / Contributions to Other Agencies (Object Level)
———— 4—_—_—-—___—%_—_———_—_-“—__—__—.____—_—“-————_*—_—__ e
Budgeted FY| Actuals io
A.ccount # Description 2017-2018 | 03/31/1R
540-100-01 Air Monitoring Program 1,400
540-100-02 Alternate Commute Program 750
540-100-05 Public Education Program (see Acet 304-100.03) 5,000 100
545-100-01 ARB: AB 2588 Fees 770
545-100-06 Fire Dept Response Reimbursement (sce Acct# 401-100-13) 1,500 140

8,020

Contribution to Other Agencies / Internal Grants Total: $
— = =

$ 1,640
— ]

Fixed Asset Purchase

Budgeted FY

s (Object chel)"

Actuals to

Page 3

A.ccount # Description 2017-2018 | 03/31/18
560-100-01 Office Equipment (2 computers@3,000 and server@6,500) 6,000 -
560-100-05 EPA Special 103 Grant 28,430
560-100-06 EPA - CAPCOA 103 -- website upgrade,video cam, BAM tape,conference - 12,650
560-100-04 Vehicle - -
560-100-02 Field Equipment (fixed assets - over $1,000) 1,000 -
L _ Fixed Asset Purchases Total: $ i 35430 1§ 12,650
!Exgenditures
—_—= — —_——=
Salaries & Benefits Object Level 596,179 404,638
Services & Supplies Object Level 142,190 104,986
Contributions to Other Agencies Object Level 8,020 1,640
Fixed Asset Purchases Object Level 35,430 12,650
Expenditures Total: $ 781,819 |$ 523,914
———————— = ——————————— ———_
[ D

FY1718 Q3 Board April 23 2018 DRAFT




Northern Sierra AQMD Restricted Fund Report

Page 1 of 3

v

492018

$S$ Already Disbursed by Grantee $$ Already Disbursed by Fund Source
S

Participant’s Name and Agreement \umber Amount Disbursed| Date of Disbursement|  Account AB2766 Cart Moyer AB923 TIMBER  H&S Mitigation
Wolf Creek Woodstores b 1.500.00 |  August2,2017 2016-050 {$ 600.00 $ 900.00
Quincy Hot Spot § 3.500.00 | August 17,2017 2017169 | $ 2,600.00 s 900.00
Quincy Hot Spot S 350000 | August 17.2017 2016-063 | S 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Woli Crack Woodstoves ] 1.500.00 |  August 17.2017 2016-129 | 600.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Crazk Woodstoves ] 349533 | August 17,2017 2016-177 | $ 2.595.33 s 900.00
Wolf Cresk Woodstores 8 3.500.00 |  August 17.2017 2017182 _|$ 2,600.00 $ 900.00
Quincy Hot Spot 3 3.500.00 August 17.2017 2017-161 {$ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Quincy Hot Spot § 3.500.00 August 17,2017 2017-166 | $ 2,600.00 $ 900.00
Quincy Hot Spot 3 1.500.00 | August 17.2017 2016080 | § 600.00 s 900.00
Wolf Creek Woodstoves § 3.500.00 | August17.2017 2017-176 | $ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Woli Cresk Woodstores § 34843 August 17,2017 2017-194 | § 2.584.13 s 900,00
Quincy Hot Spot 3 440000 | August24.2017 2016-144 |S 3.500.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Craek Woodstoves 5 3.500.00 August 24.2017 2007-171 1§ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Quines Hot Spot s 3.500.00 | August 30,2017 2017-173 |8 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Crock Woodstores 3 3.500.00 |  August 30.2017 2017-201 {§ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
(Quincy He: Spoi ] 3.500.00 | September8,2017 | 2017-183 | § 2,600.00 s 900.00
Quincy Het Spot 3 3.500.00 | September 8.2017 2017-188 | $ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Crock Woodstoves 3 3.500,00 | September 8.2017 2016-135 | $ 2.600.00 b 900.00
Wolf Crack Woodstoves 3 3.499.52 | September 8.2017 20i7-167 |8 2.599.82 S 900.00
ol Creek Woodstos es $ 3.844.05 | Seplember20.2017 § 2017-174 | S 2.944.05 $ 900.00
Welf Creck Woodstores $ 3.500.00 | Scplember20.2017 | 2017205 [ $ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Quiney Hot Spot ) 1.500.00 |  Octobor 6.2017 2017-191 | § 600.00 $ 900.00
Quincy Hot Spot 3 5.500.00 |  October6.2017 2017-15 |8 2.600.00 $ 900,00
Wolf Crak Woodstoves S 3.499.00 |  October6.2017 2017-178 | § 2.599.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Creck Woodsiores 3 3.500.00 | October 13,2017 20i7-215 IS 2,600.00 5 900.00
Wolf Creck Woodstoves 3 4.400.00 October 18,2017 2017-186 | $ 3,500.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Creek Woodstones 3 1.500.00 | October 18.2017 2017209 |8 600.00 $ 900.00
Wolf Creek Woodstores 3 1.500.00 October 18.2017 2017-207 | S 600.00 % 900.00
wolf Creek Woodsioves 3 3.500,00 |  October 25,2017 2017-187 | § 2,600.00 3 900.00
Quiney Hot Spot 3 1.500.00 | November |.2017 2016-150 | § 600.00 $ 900.00
Quiney Hot Spot 3 1.500.00 { November 8.2017 2017-00) $ 600.00 s 900.00
Wolf Creek Woodstoves S 3.499.00 | November$.2017 2017-192 | $ 2,599.00 $ 900.00
Vol Cresk Woodstoses 3 3.500.00 | Nowember8.2017 | 2016010 |$ 2,600.00 s 900.00
Wolf Creck Woodsioves 3 3.500.00 | November 15.2017 | 2017-190 |§ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Volf Creek Woodsiores S 349998 | November22.2017 | 2017220 |$ 2.599.98 $ 900.00
Woll Creek Woodstoves $ 349862 | November30.2017 | 2017221 |$ 2.598.62 $ 900.00

DISBURSEMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS, FY 17-18

External Grants xlIs, FY 17-18



47612018

Northern Sierra AQMD Restricted Fund Report

Page20of3

$S Already Disbursed by Grantee $$ Already Disbursed by Fund Source
Participant’s Name and Agreement \ umber Amount Disbursed{ Date of Disbursement Account AB2766 Carl Moyer AR923 TIMBER  H&S Mitigation
(s Fict Spat s 263212 | December6.2017 | 2016-133 |$ 1,732.12 s 900.00
(ruines Het Spat 5 282318 | December6.2017 | 20i7-163_|$ 1,928.18 s 900.00
Cuines Het Sper 5 500000 | December 6.201? 2017204 | § 2.100.00 $ 900 00
Quines Het Spot s 260618 | December 19.2017 | 2016-108 |8 1.706.18 $ 900.00
Criiney Hed 8pot $ 3.500.00 | December 19,2017 2016-131 | 8 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Guines Hot Spa 3 4.133.53 | Docember 19.2017 | 2016-146 | § 3,233.53 $ 900.00
Crazes Hot Spat 3 3.000.00 | December 19.2017 | 2017-162 | S 2.100.00 $ 900.00
Cuizes Het Spot S 4.400.00 | December 19,2017 2007-175 | § 3.500.00 $ 900.00
Cruiney He: Spat H 2.554.55 | December 19.2017 | 2007-195 | § 1.654.55 $ 900.00
Cuuiney Hat Sgt 5 3.071,27 | December 19.2017 2017217 | $ 2.171.27 $ 900.00
Wl Cresh Woodsiores b} 3.498.21 | December 19.2017 2017-184 | $ 2.59821 $ 900.00
Wold Croeh Woodniones s 3.500.00 | December 19.2017 2017-193 1§ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Wals Craek Woodsiaves 3 3.499.75 | December 19.2017 2017-197 1§ 2.399.75 b 900.00
Woit Creeh Woodstoses H 1.500.00 | December 19.2017 | 2017203 ] $ 600.00 $ 900.00
Wi Creeh Woadsienes s 349916 | December 19.2017 | 2017211} $ 2.599.16 s 900.00
Weid Creeh WWeodsteves 3 404064 | December 19,2017 2017-212 |§ 3.140.64 3 900.00
Wolf Creeh Wondsiones S 2.693.73 | December 19,2017 2017-213 |8 1.793.73 3 900.00
Welf Creeh Woodstones 3 4.400.00 | Daocember 19,2017 2017-233 | § 3.500.00 3 900.00
Qo Het Spot s 350000 | Docember 19.2017 | 2016-131 | $ 2,600.00 3 900.00
Weii Creeh Woodaiores 3 1,500.00 | December 19,2017 2017-200 | % 600.00 $ 900.00
Ouinzs Hot Spat 3 3.500.00 | Dacember21,2017 | 2017-214 §§ 2,600.00 $ 900.00
Woli Craeh Weodstoves 3 3.500.00 | Januany 17,2018 2017-234 | $ 2.600.00 5 900.00
Creeh Woodster es 3 1.552.07 February 1.2018 2017-205 | § 652.07 s 900.00
(rotncs Het Spat s 1,500.00 | February 7.2018 2017-19% | $ 3.600.00 $ 900,00
Chuines Het Spat ] 340000 | February 7,2018 2017-199 |8 2,500.00 $ 900.00
Chuines Hot Spat H 59325 | Februsn 14,2018 s 593,25
1 Hot Spot 3 3.500.00 | February 14,2018 2017-208 | $ 2.600.00 $ 900.00
Chsizics Hies Spot 3 271948 | Februsry 14.2018 2017229 | $ 1.819.48 s 900.00
Wolt Creeh Wosdatoves S 10000 | February 14,2018 2017-199 | $ 100.00
Wolf Crash Woodsis s ) 3.126.26 | February 14,2018 2018244 | $ 2.226.26 $ 900.00
Wolf Craek Waodsicves 3 2.739.39 February 14,2018 2018-245 $ 1.839.39 3 900.00
Woll Creek Weddsiores s 3491.52 February 14.2018 2017-210 $ 2.591.52 $ 900.00
Spa 3 100,00 | Februany 28,2018 2017-199 | 8§ 100.00
Ouiney He Spo 3 1.500.00 | February 28,2018 2017-232 | 600.00 $ 900.00
Het Spat 3 3.000.00 | February 28.2018 2017-202 | § 2.100.00 $ 900.00
Quines Hét Spot b} 3.000.00 | February 28. 2018 2017-222 |8 2.100.00 $ 900.00
Walf Crezh Woodsioras 3 349107 | March28.2018 2018266 }$ 2.591.97 $ 900.00
Wolf Crask Woodsivues $ 3.300.00 March 28. 2018 2018-270 |5 2.600.00 s 900.00

DISBURSEMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS, FY 17-18

External Grants.xls, FY 17-18

)



41912218

Northern Sierra AQMD Restricted Fund Report

Page 3 of 3

$$ Already Disbursed by Grantee $$ Already Disbursed by Fund Source
Participant’s Name and Agreement Number Amount Disbursed| Date of Disbursement|  Account AB2766 Carl Moyer AB 923 TIMBER  H&S Mitigation
Hansen Bros. Enterprises (AB 2 3.$35.700 s 35.700.00 July 21.2017 580-200-54 |1 § 35.700.00
Portola PM N Mingat und (AB 2105-08. 833 211) $ 200.00 August 2, 2017 580-200-93 § S 200.00
NSAQMD Video Conferencing (AR 2013-01. $7.000) $ 460.67 August 10.2017 $80-200-65 13 460.67
Porwola PM N Mitigatior, “und (AB 2105-08.$33211) $ 957.00 | August 17.2017 530-200-93 | $ 957.00
Portols PM N Mitigation Fund (AB 2105-08.§33.211) $ 48,09 |  August24.2017 580-200-93 | $ 48.09
Toun of Truckee (AB 2016-06. $60.757) s 60.7387.00 August 30,2017 580-200-63 | § 60.787.00
Pertcla MOU (AB 2016-08, §35.378 3 2.102.00 [ Sepiember 8. 2017 580-200-73 | $ 2,102.00
inc Sanior Citizens of Siesra County « A 2016-01, §5.670) 5 1.029.00 | October 18,2017 580-200-76 | § 1.029.00
Pertola PM N i M und (AB 2105-08.533.211) 3 97.78 | October 18,2017 580-200-93 | § 97.78
Superior Coun of California (AB 201 <-03. $40.000) s 40.000.00 | November §.2017 580-200-51 | $ 40.000.00
Grandi Ranch (CMP 2017-01.3664:° 08) $ 66.445.08 December 7. 2017 | CMP 201701 s 66.445.08
Portola PM N Mitigation i'und (AB 2103-08.833211) $ 100.00 | December 19,2017 | 580-200-93 | $ 100.00
Partels M N gatios Fund (AB 2103-08.833.211) $ 100.00 | December 19,2017 | 580-200-93 { § 100.00
#oberti Ranch (CMP 2017-02, $113.03¢) $  113.036.00 Janusry 19,2018 CMP 201702 $ 113.036.00
Tahoe Truckee Unitied School Distrizs (CMP 2017-03. 525.000) $ 25.000.00 January 26. 2018 CMP 201703 $ 279.92 $ 2472008
Tahoe Trackea Unifiad School Districs (AB 2017-03. 566.320) 3 66.320.00 January 26, 2018 AB2017-03 | § 66.320.00
Senior Citizens ¢f Sierra County (AR 2016-01. 55.670) 3 1.028.00 |  February 1.2018 AB2016-01 | $ 1.028.00
Ace Welding, Inc. (AB 2017-04. 530.0510) 3 50.000.00 February 1.2018 AB2017-04 | 8 30.000.00
Pencla PM N i M fund {AB 2013-08,§33.211) 3 1.795.07 February 7,2018 AB2015.08 | § 1.795.07
Wolr Crack Woodstoxes b 2,000.00 February 28, 2018 AB2015-08 | § 2.000.00
Total Amount Disbursed for woodstoves fromt AB 2766 fund: ] $  158.891.19
Total Amount Disbursed for Granis from AB 2766 fund:] $  242.724.61
Total amount that has already been disbursed:| $ 669.996.33 $ 40161580 $ 179.761.000 $ -1 $2472008| % 63.900.00

DISBURSEMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS, FY 17-18

Extemal Grants.xls, FY 17-18

S-



4/912C18

Northern Sierra AQMD Restricted Fund Report

Encumbered SS Not Yet Disbursed by Grantee

Encumbered $$ Not Yet Disbursed by Fund Source

Approved

— I

Participant's Name and Agreement Number D mBn:.:.n Expiration Date Account AB2766 Carl Moyer AB 923 TIMBER  H&S Mitigation
NevCo Library Svstem, Chicaso Park Kiosk (AB 2014-09, $33.435) $  21.207.00 | Decomber3l.20i6 | 580-200-10 | § 21,207.60

NSAQMD Video Conferencins (AB 2015-01, $7.000) s (572.25) wa 580-200-65 | § (572.25)

NevCo CDA & IGS (AB 2015-02, $45.000) s 2,250.00 | December31.2016 | 580-200-69 | § 2,250.00
Nevada County Public Worls (AB 2015-04, $30,000) S 1.500.00 | December 31,2016 | 580-200-67 § S 1,500.00
Nevada County Library (AR 2015-05, $25.000) S 25,000.00 | December3l. 2016 | 580-200-70 | § 25,000.00
Nevada County Library (AB 2015-06, $13,500) S 1156640 | December3l. 2016 | 580-200-71 | S 11,566.40
Nevada County Library (AB 2016-02. $20,600) S 20,600.00 | December3i.2017 | 580-200-52 | § 20,600.00
Portola PAI N + Mitigation Fuad (AB 2105-08, $33,.211) S 24,059.16 | December3l. 2016 | 580-20093 §$ 24,059.16
Portola MOU (AB 2016-08, $33.378) S 26932.81 | December31.2017 | 580-200-73 | § 26,932.81
Saperior Court of California (AB 2017-05, 547.385) S 47.385.00 | December3l. 2018 | AB2017-05 | S 47,385.00
Tows of Truchee (AB 2017-86. $40.000) S 40,000.00 | December3l 2018 | AB2017-06 | § 40,000.00
Iac Senior Citizeas of Sierra {ounty (AB 2017-01, §5.853) s 5853.00 | December31.2018 | AB2017-01 | § 5,853.00
Plumas County Public Works (AB 2017-02, $36.338) S 36,338.00 | December31.20i8 | AB2017-02 | § 36,338.00

H & S Mitigation Fund §  180,733.36 n/a 581-200-01 S 180,733.36

Total ihat is bered but not yet disbursed: | S 442,852.48 s 262,192} S - |s - |s - ] s 180,733.36

AB2766 Carl Moyer AB923 TIMBER  H&S Mitigation

Revenue to date Received during FY 17-18 for each fund (inciudes interest): $ 18590099 $ 17550321 § 38234.19 § 18436 § 2,533.59

"Remaining Balance" aka Unencumbered Revenue to date during FY 17-18 for each fund: § (2335149) § 22330 $170,800.58 $ -

EPA Target Grant Revenue (i0 be transferred into Nevada County AB2766): 8  265,696.18

DISBURSEMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS, FY 17-18

Page 10f1

Extarnal Grants.xls, FY 17-18



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QDALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIREFCTOR™S METTING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Controt Officer

Date: April 23, 2018

Agenda ltem: IV.B

Agenda Description: Financial Audit Ending June 30, 2017

Issues:
The annual audit for FY 2016-2017 was completed by Singleton Auman PC.

Clay Singleton will make a short presentation to the Board to recap the results of the
audit and answer any questions from the Board.

Requested Action:
1. Approve the District’s Financial Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending on

June 30, 2017.
ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:
1. Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Audit Report June 30, 2017

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA / X



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2017

(9

SingletonAumane«

Certified Public Aocountants & Con




NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
Government-Wide Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances-Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

Notes to Financial Statements

Reguired Supplementary Information:

General Fund ~ Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Restricted Fund — Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - PERS
Schedule of District Contributions - PERS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Combined Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Corrective Action Plan

Page No.

p—t

13
14

15
16

17

18
19

36
37
38
39

40
42
45
46

RO



FINANCIAL SECTION



%Si ngl eto n Au m a n PC john E. Auman, cPA

CERTIFED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AN CONSUILTANTS Clay E. Singleton, cPA, MsAce

Independent Anditors® Report

e

Board of Directors
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
Grass Valley , CA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitics and the
major funds of the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (District) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managcment’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards
requite that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair preseniation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurastances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policics used and the reasonablencss of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Susanville: Chester:
1740 Malin Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-tpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 www.sa-cpas.com 530.258,2272 Fax: 530.258.2282

S



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activitics and the major funds of Northern
Sierra Air Quality Management District as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepled in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedule of
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and the schedule of Disirict Contributions
identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a basic part of the financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statemenis. We do not cxpress an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

A3



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
21, 2018, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and othcr matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of intcrnal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully Submitted,

ad

SingletonAuman PC
Susanville, CA
March 21, 2018



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2017

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of Northern. Sierra Air Quality Management District’s (District)
financial performance provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017. It should be read in conjunction with the Distriet’s financial
statements (including notes and supplementary information), which follow this section.

The District’s discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on
significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the District’s financial activity, (c)
identify changes in the District’s financial position (its ability to address the next and
subsequent year challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the
approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concems.

Overview of District’s Financial Activity

The District’s mission is to preserve air quality and protect the public health and welfare in
Nevada, Plumas and Sierra Counties. The District does this through programs implemented
with the assistance of federal, state and local contributions. A major portion of the District’s
yearly annual revenue is through state subvention.

Pursuant to the joint powers agreement and amendments signed by the chairperson of each
member county Board of Supervisors, the District receives funding from each of the Counties it
serves. Each year, the District’s Board of Directors adopts one method of calculating the
current year’s contribution. Methods are based on historical contributions, county populations,
need, and inflation. Additional revenue comes from the following sources:

State Subvention Funds

AB 2766 DMV Surcharge Fees

AB 923 DMV Surcharge Fees

Stationary Source Fees

Hearing Board Fees

Open Burning Fees

Woodstove Inspection Fees

AB 2588 Air Toxics Hot Spots Fees

Fines Levied for Rule Infractions

Interest on Reserves

Subscriptions & Copies

Contract with EPA to Monitor PM2.5

Carl Moyer Program (grant pass-through only)

Lower Emission School Bus Program (Proposition 1B)

TIMBER (Truck Improvement Modemization Emission Reduction)
EPA’s 2015 Target Grant (for the Plumas PM.2.5 Nonattainment Area)
H & S Settlement with EPA

XS



Assembly Bill 2766 (1991) Vchicle Registration Fee funds make up a significant portion of
District revenue, however, these funds may be used solcly to reduce air pollution from motor
vehicles and for related planning, monitoring, enforcement, and technical studies necessary for
the implementation of the California Clean Air Act of 1988. The District collects $4 per
vehicle registration in Nevada County and Plumas County and $2 registration in Sierra County.

The District receives revenues from the State which are restricted - funds which can only be
used for exclusive purposes allocated by the Board and state requirements. Examples of
continuing restricted funds are the pass-through grant programs of Board-approved AB2766
projects and Carl Moyer Heavy-Duty Diesel program. The District administers the expenditure
of these monies (restricted expenditures) for worthy air pollution projects within the District’s
jurisdiction. All monies restricted for external grants only are placed in an account (Restricted
Budget) separate from the District’s Internal Operating Budget.

Carl Moyer Program pass-through funds come from ARB at a different cycle than the
District’s Fiscal Year of July 1, and is to be used throughout a three year time period. During
FY 16/17, the District disbursed $247,345.

The External AB2766 grunt cycle lags behind the fiscal year by 3 months, running from
October 1¥ to September 30th. AB 2766 funding is encumbered in June (for previously
approved grants) for use after June 30th. Typically. about half of ariginally allocated funds are
used in these final months. During the first 3 months of the AB 2766 grant cycle, the opposite
is true. As grantees gear up and since grant payments are reimbursemeni-based there is a lag of
several months before payments are made to grantees. This irregular, unpredictable cash flow
produces confusion to those trying to evaluate the District’s reserves and can lead to overly
optimistic estimations of the financial health of the District’s reserves. In order to make this
process easier to understand, the District places the granted portion of AB2766 funds in a
separate account {Restricted Account) from the Operating Account. The AB 2766 projects must
go through a competitive process and be approved by the District’s Board of Directors,

During FY 16/17, the District disbursed $81,286.

TIMBER (Truck Improvement Modernization Emission Reduction Program)

The Carl Moyer Truck Improvement/Modernization Benefitting Emission Reductions
(TIMBER) Program provides a streamlined approach for replacing older, high-polluting heavy-
duty log trucks earlier than required. The TIMBER program helps reduce sorme of the costs
associated with replacing a log truck with a new (not used) log truck. The District disbursed
$95,000 during FY 16/17.

EPA’s Target Grant (for the Plumas PM2.5 Nonattainment area)

The District received a $2.48 million grant from the Targeted Air Shed Grant for a wood stove
change-out program. The grant is intended to improve air quality in areas of the U. S. with the
highest levels of pollution. During fiscal year 16/17 the District expended $273,972 on this

grant.
H & S Woodstove Mitigation

The District had a one-time revenue of $400,000 as a result of a settlement between H & S and
the Environmental Protection Agency. These funds are to be used for a woodstove change-out
program. The District disbursed $105,300 during FY 16/17.

-5-

%



Financial Highlights — Operating Budget

The operating fumd reported an excess of tevenues over expenditures this year of $140,877.
During the year, the District’s non-grant expenses were $769.937, while revenue for the
unrestricted fund was $910,814.

Operating Budget - Revenue

Revenues were $910,814 which exceeded expected revenue hy §54.549. This was largely due
to greater than expectcd AB 2766 Fees.

For Fiscal Year 17/18, the District expects revenue to be $871,090.
Operating Budget - Expenditures

During FY 16-17, approximately 73% of expenditures ($567,005) were utilized for Salaries and
Benefits. During FY 17-18, the District expects $596,179 (76% of total e¢xpenditures) for
Salaries and Benefits.

Financial Highlights - Restricted Budget

The restricted fund reported an excess of revenue over expenditures this year of $104,590.
During the year, the District's restricled revenue was $907,495 while expenditures for the
restricted fund were $802,905.

Restricted Revenue

Total revenue for FY 16/17 was $907,495. This revenue is from five government grant
programs; AB2766, AB 923, EPA Target Grant, TIMBER and the Woodstove change-out.

Restricted Expenditures

Total amount disbursed in FY 16/17 was $802,905. Major disbursements were as follows:
$81,287 for the AB2766 program, $247,345 for the Carl Moyer Heavy Duty Diesel program,
$95,000 for the TIMBER Program, $105,300 for the H & S Mitigation Program and $273,973
for the EPA Target Grant.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o Total net position was $366,372 at June 30, 2017. This was an increase of $105,277
over the prior year.

o Overall revenues were $1,818,309, which were more than expenses of $1,674,322 by
$143,987.

a The General Fund reported a fund balance this year of $748,645.
0 The Restricted Fund reported a fund balance this year of $669,840.



OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections
together provide a comprehensive overview of the District. The basic financial statements are
comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial information from different

perspectives:

o Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements,
provide both short-term and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial
position.

o Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the District
operations in more detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining
statements.

= Governmental funds statements tell how general govermnment services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.

= Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in
which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom
the resources belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
statements and provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a
section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial
statements. A comparison of the district’s budget for the year is included.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
position includes all of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash
is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed.
Net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the District’s
financial health or position.

g Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position is an indicator of whether
its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

a To assess the overall health of the District, one needs to consider additional
nonfinancial factors such as changes in the tax base, and changes in program funding by
the Federal and State governments, and the condition of the District’s facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. Most
of the District’s basic services are included here, such air monitoring.

s



Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s most
significant funds-not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the District uses
to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds
are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. The Board of Directors
establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the
District is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues. The District has one kind of
funds:

o Governmental funds - Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus
of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of
the government funds statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between
them.

2



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The District’s combined net position was $366,372 at June 30, 2017. Sce Table 1.

Table 1:
Net Position
Total Percentage
Governmental Activities Change
2017 2016 2017-2016

Assets

Cash $ 1,653,463 $ 1,862,217 . -11.21%

Accounts Receivable 193,431 75,780 155.25%

Prepaid Expenses 17,411 100.00%

Captial Assets, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation 139,173 131,684 5.69%

Total Assets 1,986,067 2,087,092 -4.84%
Deferred Outflows

Pension Plan Contributions 250,083 65,959 100.00%
Liabilities

Accounts Payablc 17,028 21,689 -21.49%

Uneamed Revenue 411,381 721,991 -43.02%

Long-Term Debt 1,398,642 1,172,748 19.26%
Total Liabilites 1,827,051 1,916,428 -4.66%
Deferred Inflows

Pension Plan Income 42,727 (24,272) 100.00%
Net Position

Net Investment In Capital Assets 139,173 131,684 5.69%

Restricted 669,340 565,250 18.50%

Unrestricted (442,641) (435,839) 1.56%
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 366,372 & 261’09:53_, 40.32%
Changes in Net Position

The District’s total revenues were $1,818,309. A majority of the revenue comes from Federal
and State aid for specific programs (92%) of total revenues.

The total cost of all programs and services was $1,674,322. This reflects an increase of
$398,724 in expenditures from the prior year.

-9-

A0



Table 2:
Changes in Net Position

Total Percentage
Governmental Activilies Change
2017 2016 2017-2016
Revenues

Permits & Fees $ 129,747 § 160,301 -19.06%

Government Funding 1,662,608 1,242.295 13.83%

Interest Income 21,953 11,828 85.60%

Other Income 4,001 10,787 -62.91%
TOTAL REVENUES 1,818,309 1,425,211 27.58%
Expenses:

Air Quality Management 1,674,322 1,275,598 31.26%
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,674,322 1,275,598 31.26%
INCREASE/(DECREASE)

IN NET POSITION $ 143,987 $ 149,613 -3.76%

£ s, T maes oy WE
LOVErinne

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the District’s functions as well as each function’s net cost
(total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects
what was funded by charges for services, operating grants and capital grants and contributions.

The total cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,674,322.

Table 3
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2017 2016 2017 2016
Air Quality Management _$ 1,674,322 $ 1,275,598 § 122,015 $ 137,785
TOTAL $ 1,674322 $ 1,275,598 § 122,015 $ 137,785

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

The overall financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental
funds as well. As the District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined
fund balance of $1,418,415 which is above last year’s ending fund balance of $1,173,018 (as
restated).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Before each year the District budgets for that year operation. The Districts” budget was revised
during the year. A schedule of the District’s original and final budget amounts compared with

-10-



actual revenues and expenses is provided in the supplemental scction of the audited financial
report.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assects

At June 30, 2017, the District had invested $131,684 in a broad range of capital asscts,
including furniture, cquipment and vehicles. See Table 4.

Table 4
Capital Assets

Total Percentage

Governmental Activitics Change
2017 2016 2017-2016

Furniture $ 72,665 $ 101,975 -28.74%
Equipment 259,349 252,312 2.7%%
Vehicles 101,662 109,159 -6.87%
Construction in Process 100.00%
Totals at Historical Cost 433,676 463,446 -6.42%
Total Accumulated Depreciation (294,503) (331,762) -11.23%
NET CAPITAL ASSETS $ 139,173 § 131,684 5.69%

The District expects $50,430 in capital expenditures for the 2017/18 fiscal year.
Long-Term Debt
At year end, the District had $1,398,642 in debt, consisting of compensated absences, other

post-employment benefits and net pension liability as shown in Table 5. More detailed
information about the District’s debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Table 5
Leng-Term Debt
Total Percentage
Governmental Activities Change
2017 2016 2017-2016
Compensated Absences $ 56,065 $ 52,936 5.91%
Other-Post Employment Benefits 416,993 368,540 13.15%
Net Pension Liability 925,584 751,272 23.20%
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT § 1,398,642 § 1,172,748 19.26%

-11-

3.



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

At the time thesc financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of
several circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

a The uncertainty of state funding can have a profound impact on the financial health of
the District. Although no changes are currently anticipated, the state government could
implement mid-year budpet cuts and further cash deferrals.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parcnts, participants,
investors and creditors with a gencral overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the
District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, or
neced additional financial information, contact:

Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Northemn Sicrra Air Quality Management District
200 Litton Drive, Suite 320

Grass Valley, CA 95945

530-274-9360

-12-

D3



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Assets
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash in County Treasury
Accounts Receivable
Capital Assets:
Furniture, Equipment, Vehicles, Net
Total assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Recognition of Contributions to
Pension Plan

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year
Due within more than one year
Net Pension Liability

Total Labilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Recognition of Pension Plan Earnings

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

3

$

Governmental

Activities

104,719
1,548,744
193,431

139,173

1,986,067

250,083

17,028
411,381

56,065
416,993
925,584

1,827,051

42,727

139,173
669,840

(442,641)

366,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-13-

34



NORTHERN SIERRA ATR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net (Expense)
Revenue and Changes
Program Revenues in Net Position
Operating
Governmental Charges Grants and Total
Activitics Expenses for Servicess Contributions  Governmental Activities
Air Quality Management $ 1,674,322 § 129,748 § 1,666,609 $ 122,035
Total Governmental Activities $ 1,674,322 § 129,748 $ 1,666,609 122,035
General Revenucs:
Interest 21,952
Total General Revenue 21,952
Change in net position 143,987
Net position beginning (As Restated - See Note 12) 222,385
Net position ending 3 366,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
-14-

35



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Assets

Cash on Hand and in Banks
Cash in County Treasury
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2017

General Fund  Restricted Fund Total
$ 104,719 $ - $ 104,719
573,531 975,213 1,548,744
85,300 108,131 193 431
3 763,550 $ 1,083,344 $ 1,846,894
$ 14,905 $ 2,123 $ 17,028
- 411,381 411,381
14,905 413,504 428,409
223,776 669,840 893,616
343,000 - 343,000
181,869 - 181,869
748,645 669,840 1,418,485
3 763,550 $ 1,083,344 $ 1,846,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-15-

E1%



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO

THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 36, 2016

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activites are not reported in the funds
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current
period are not reported in the finds

Payables for capital assets used in governmental activities are not
reported in the funds

Deferred Outflows of resources in governmental activies are reported
as expenditures in the funds

Deferred Inflows of resources in govermental activities are not reported
in the funds

Payables for Pension Benefits which are not due in the current period
are not reported in the funds

Payables for Other Post-Employment Benefits which are not due in the
current period are not reported in the funds.

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
-16-

$

$

1,418,485

139,173

(56,065)

250,083
(42,727)

(925,584)

(416,993)

366,372

370



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

General Restneted
Fund Fund Total
Revenue:
Permits & Fees 3 129,747 - 3 129,747
Intergovernmental Revenue 755,240 907,368 1,662,608
Interest Income 21,826 127 21,953
Other Income 4,001 - 4,001
Total Revenue 910,814 907,495 1,818,309
Expenditures:
Air Quality Management
Salaries 371,145 - 371,145
Benefits 195,860 - 195,860
Air Monitoring 11,509 11,509
H & S Mitigation - 105,300 105,300
AB 2776 Grants - 81,287 81,287
Carl Moyer Diesel - 247,345 247,345
Timber Program - 95,000 95,000
EPA Target Grant - Wood St. 273,973 273,973
Professional Fees 30,832 - 30,832
Communications 19,600 - 19,600
Travel 11,251 - 11,251
Office 9,753 - 9,753
Rent and Utilities 33,602 - 33,602
Repairs and Maintenance 7,434 - 7,434
Dues and Subscriptions 4,908 - 4,908
Insurance 16,355 - 16,355
Capital Outlay 39,503 - 39,503
Misceltaneous 18,185 18,185
Total Expenditures 769,937 802,905 1,572,842
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 140,877 104,590 245,467
Fund Balance, July 1 (As Restated-See Note 12) 607,768 .' 565,250 1,173,018
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 748,645 669840 $ 1418485

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-17-

B



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2017

Net Changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
("SOA") are different because:

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not
reported in the funds.

Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA
but as the amount paid in the funds.
Other Post-Employment Benefits are reported as the amount earned in
the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds.
Capital Outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA
Pension Expenditures used in governmental activities are not reported in the
funds

Changes in net position of governmental activities - statement of activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
-18-

¥ 245,467

(32,068)

(3,075)

(48,453)
39,503

(57,387)

$ 143,987

39



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Northern Sicrra Air Quality Management District (District) was founded on November 20.
1986 by an agreement between Nevada, Plumas and Sierra Counties and their corresponding Air
Pollution Control Districts under provisions of Chapter 3 Part 3 Division 26 of the California
Health and Safety Code. The District is responsible for attaining and maintaining the federal and
state ambient air quality standards, and is therefore engaged in activities such as air monitoring,
planning, enforcement, permitting, public education, and complaint investigation. Substantial
funding for the District is from County established surcharges on vehicle registrations. These
monies are collected by the California Department of Motor Vehicles and subsequently remitted
to the District. Other sources of revenues include state subvention funding and fees from various
permits, fines, and County general fund contributions. Over 50% of the District’s revenue
originates from or passes through departments of the State of California.

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA).

1. Reporting Entity

The District’s combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The
District evaluated whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The
criteria for including organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as
set forth in GASB Statement No. 14 “The Financial Reporting Entity” and GASB Statement No.
39 “Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units,” include whether:
- The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)
- The District holds the corporate powers of the organization
- The District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board
- The District is able to impose its will on the organization
- The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
- There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District
- The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or
almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government .
- The primary government is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of
the economic resources received or held by the separate organization
- The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific
primary government is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to
that primary government

Based on these criteria, the District has no component units. Additionally, the District is not a
component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

-19-

4o



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

2. Basis of Presentation. Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses in the
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
District's funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: This is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the district except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Restricted Fund: This is the program fund of the District. It represents resources restricted to
support of District air quality improvement and monitoring grants funded by AB 2766, Carl
Moyer, Wood Stove Replacement Project, EPA PM2.5 Grant , and other government
funding programs.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange
transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include county assessments, grants, entitlements, and

-20-

——



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2017

donations. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The District considers
all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected
within sixty days after year-end. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are
both measurable and available. Revenue from permits is not considered measurable until they
are received and are recognized as revenue at that time because the renewal amount is based
partially on actual emissions for the preceding period. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to
the extent they have matured. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the District incurs an expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

3. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

a. Deposits & Investments

Cash is composed of the following amounts as of June 30, 2017:

Restricted Unrestricted Total
Cash on hand and in banks $ - $ 104,719 $ 104,719
Cash in Nevada County Treasury 975,213 573,531 1,548,744

Total Cash and Investments $ 975213 § 678250 § 1,653,463

Cash balances held in banks are insured to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized.

221 -



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Nearly all cash at June 30, 2017 is pooled for investment purposes and held by Nevada
County. Interest is apportioned quarterly to the District based on the average daily balances
on deposit with the County of Nevada., The Nevada County Treasury is an external
investment pool for the District and the District is considered and involuntary participant.
The investments made by the Treasurer are regulated by the California Government Code and
by the County’s investment policy, however, the County’s investment pool is not rated by a
nationally recognized rating agency. By limiting its investments to thc Nevada County
Treasurers’ investment pool, managed in accordance with the California Government Code,
the District minimizes its exposurc to custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk,
interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk.

Cash deposits are reported at carrying value which reasonably estimates fair value.

b. Capital Assets

Purchased or constricted capital assets arc reported at cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $1,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Estimated Useful
Asset Class Lives
Vehicles 5
Office Equipment 7
Field Equipment 5-7

Gain or loss is recognized when assets are retired from service or are otherwise disposed.

c. Receivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in
the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation.
Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of
year end.

-22-



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

d. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes rcport a separac
section for deferred outflows of resources. This scparate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)

until then. Currently, the District has only one item that qualify for reporting in this category,
deferred amounts from District pension contributions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The District has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category, unavailable
amounts from the District portion of PERS pension earnings.

e. Compensated Absences

Accrued compensated absences for accumulated unpaid leave that is payable to employees
upon termination include 100% of all employees’ vacation time and compensated time off
earned. In addition, 35% of sick time earned for employees who have been employed by the
district for five years are also included. In accordance with GASB 34, this liability is accrued
in the Government-Wide financial statements but not on the Governmental Fund financial
statements. The current portion of the liabilities is recognized in the General Fund at year
end.

f. Budgetary Accounting

The District adopts its budget by July 1* of each year. Supplemental appropriations are
adopted throughout the year as necessary.

g. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Accounting Principles Generally
Accepted in the United States of America requires the use of management's estimates. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Uy



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

h. Components of Net Position

For Government-Wide Financial Statements, cquity is classificd i three components as
follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets including restricted capital asscts,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt borrowings
that arc attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position consists of net assets with restrictions placed on the use either by
extemnal groups such as contributors, grantors or regulations of other governments, or law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they arc needed.

The District can assign balances for specific future uses; however, these assignments are not
disclosed on the Statement of Net Position.

i. Equity Classifications

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — represents amounts that cannot be spend because they are
either not in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legaily required to
remain intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance — represents amounts that are constrained by external parties,
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose
because of a formal action by the District’s governing board. Committed amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless the goveming board removes those constraints by taking
the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other
purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board. Committed fund balance
amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from
outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

-24.



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Assigned Fund Balance — represents amounts which the District intends (o use for a specific
purpose, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent
may be stipulated by the governing board or body to which the governing board delegates the
authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital
projects, debts service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the
nature of their fund type or the fund’s primary purpose. Assighments within the general fund
conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower that
the general purposes of the District.

Unassigned Fund Balance — represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be
spend for any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance.
Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of
overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or
assigned.

k. Subsequent Event Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2018, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,"
violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along
with actions taken to address such violations:

Violation Action Taken
None reported Not applicable

2. Deficit Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which
address such deficits

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
None n/a n/a

-25-



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in fixed assets follows:

Balance Balance
06/30/16 Additions Dispositions 06/30/17
Furniture $ 101975 § - $ 29310 § 72,665
Equipment 252,312 7,037 259,349
Vehicles 109,159 32,466 39,963 101,662
463,446 39,503 69,273 433,676
Accumulated Depreciation (331,708) (32,068) (69,273) (294,503)
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net _§ 131,738 $ 7435 8 - 3 139,173

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Air Quality Management $32.068
Total $32,068

NOTE 4 - LEASES
Operating Leases

The District is committed under a non-cancelable operating leases for office buildings (in the
General Fund). Future minimum operating lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2018 $ 2700

Rent expenditures were $30,270 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

-26- Lf ,..{



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT

Long Term Debt is summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
06/30/16 Increases Decreases 06/30/17
Other Post Employment Benefits $ 368540 $ 48,453 - § 416993
Compensated Absences 52,936 3,129 56,065
Net Pension Liability 751,272 174,312 925,584
Total Debt Payable $1,172,748 § 225894 § - 1,398,642
Less Current Portion (56,065)

Long Term Portion of Debt Payable

NOTE 6 — EXCESS OF EXPENSES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Appropriations Category
General Fund:

Benefits

Travel

Communications
Repairs and Maintenance
Office

Dues and Subscriptions
Insurance

Miscellaneous

other than pension benefits.
o Travel exceeded budget due to conference travel.

improvements.
Office exceeded budget due to purchases of copier supplies.

Insurance exceeded budget due to two premiums to SDRMA.
Miscellaneous exceeded budget due to an adjustment to cash.

-27-

$ 1,342,577

Amount

$ 19,866
$ 2,751
$__ 1660
$ 3,934
3 i
$ 1,458
$ 8,355
$__ 9965

Dues and subscriptions exceeded budget due to CAPCOA dues.

o Benefits exceeded budget due to an increase in funding for postemployment benefits

Communications exceeded budget due to unplanned expenditures for website

Repairs and maintenance exceeded budget due to unexpected vehicle maintenance.



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017
NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
[ itipation
The District is not currently involved in litigation. In the opinion of management and legal
council, the disposition of all litigation pending will not have a material effect on the financial

statcments.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not
be material.

NOTE 8 — RISK MANAGEMENT AND LITIGATION

The District is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefi of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and customers; and natural
disasters. The District has managed these risks by obtaining coverage from commercial insurance
companies as well as providing employee education and prevention programs. All risk
management activities are accounted for in the General Fund. Expenses and claims are
recognized when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. In determining claims, events that might create claims, but for which none
have been reported are considered.

The District’s attorney estimates that the amount of actual or potential claims against the District
as of June 30, 2017 will not materially affect the financial condition of the District. Therefore,
the funds contain no provision for estimated claims. Information relating to an analysis of claims
activities for the year was not available.

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The District, as the employer, participates in the cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the California Public employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).
The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members, and beneficiaries. A full description of the pension plan benefit
provisions and assumptions for funding purposes can be obtained in Appendix B of the June 30,
2013 CalPERS actuarial evaluation report available at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-

publications.

-28-

49



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Contributions

The contribution requitements of the Plan are established by Scction 20814(c) of the California
Public Employees’ Retirement Law, which requires that employer contribution rates for all
public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the
July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017
the active employee contribution rate was 7% of annual pay, and the Districts contribution rate
was 9.353%. Contributions to the pension plan from the District were $88,034 for the year ended
June 30, 2017, $19,955 of additional contributions were made by employees.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a net pension liability of $925,984 for its proportionate
share of the total net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on the District’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total
contributions received by the pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2017.
Based upon this information, the District’s proportion was .02416%.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $57,387. At June

30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

-29.

50



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Differences between Fxpected and
Actual Expertence

Changes of Assumptions

Net Difference between Projected
and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
[nvestments

Differcces between Actual and
Proportionate Share of Contribtions

Adjustment due to Differences in
Proportions

District Contributions Subsequent
to the Measurement Date

Total

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
3 2,243 $ -

- (27,531)
143,287

6,308 (15,197)
10,210
88,034

$ 250,082 $ (42,728)

$88.,034 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District

contributions subsequent to the measurement
pension liability in the year ended June 30,

date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
2018. Any other amounts reported as deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in

pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period  Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30, of resources

2018 8,585

2019 10,594

2020 63,030

2021 37,113

Total § 119,322

-30-



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Actugrial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30. 2016, using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Discount Rate: 7.65%

Inflation: 2.75%

Salary Increases: Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return:  7.50% net of Pension Plan Investment and
Administrative Expenses

Mortality Rate Table:

Post Retirement Benefit
Increase

Derived using CalPERS Membership Data for all
Funds

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing
Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing
Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

The long-term expected rate of retwrn on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. The table below reflects long-term expected real rates of return by asset class.
The rate of return was calculated using the capital marked assumptions applied to determine the
discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative

expenses.
New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10' years 11 +
Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00 0.99 243
Inflation Sensitive 6.00 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 12.00 6.83 6.95
Real Estate 11.00 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00 4.50 5.09
Liquidity 2.00 (0.55) (1.05)

R e 3

! An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
2 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

-31-



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Discount Raic

The discount rate used to mceasure the tofal pension liability was 7.65%. To determine whether
the municipal bond rate should be sued in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan,
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested
plans run out of asscts. Therefore, the current 7.65% discount rate in adequate and the use of the
municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65%
is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test results are
presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at
the CalPLIRS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Ratc

The following presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the Plan as of the measurement date
using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the net pension liability/(asset) would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1 percentage
point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Plan’s Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) $ 1,393,885 $ 925,584 % 538,557

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued financial report of CalPERS which can be located at htips:/www.calpers

.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

The District provides certain postretirement healthcare benefits, as established by board policy, to
eligible employees through a single-employer plan governed by the Public Employees’ medical
& Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) and administered by the District. Employees are eligible for
this benefits after attaining the age of 55 with at least 10 years of service to the District. Benefits
are provided by CalPERS in exchange for premiums paid by the District up to $9,600 per year.
Employees hired after July 1, 2014 are not eligible for District paid premiums. The plan does not
issue a stand alone report.

-32-



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

At the time of the valuation, the District had three retirees.

All contracts with District cmployees will be rencgotialed periodically in the futurc, thus costs
and benefits are subject to change. Benefils and contribution requirements for the OPLB plan are
established by various labor agreements.

Funding Policy

The District currently pays for post employment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
The District has not set aside any funds to accumulate assets for future retiree obligations. Due
to the requirements of GASB No. 45, assets intended to fund future obligations are not
considered to offset the unfunded benefit obligation until the assets are transferred to an
irrevocable trust designed to pay for future OPEB obligations.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefits costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations. Significant actuarial methods and assumptions are as follows:

Plan Type Single Employer
Actuarial Valuation Date 07/01/2015
Amortized Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost
Amortization Method Level Percent of Pay
Remaining Amortization Period 24 Years
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 4.00%

Projected Salary Increases  5.00%
Healthcare Inflation Rate 0.00%

-33-



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2017

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Obligations

The following iable shows the District’s annwal OPFB cost for the vear, the amount actually

contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation:

Description June 30, 2017
Normal Cost (service cost for one year) b 24,463
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 47,663

[nterest on Normal Cost and Amortization -

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 72,126
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution -

Annual OPEB Cost (expense) 72,126
Contribution toward the OPEB Cost (23,673)
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation 48,453
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of the Year 368,540
Net OPEB Obligation, End of the Year $ 416,993

P e ]
=————--..

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The required schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial

accrued liability for benefits.

Percentage
Actuarial Valueof  Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation  Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) b-a a/b (c) ((b - a)/c)
6/30/2015 - 759,351 759,351 0% 347,076 218.8%
6/30/2016 824,195 824,195 0% 404,096 204.0%
6/30/2017 824,195 824,195 0% 390,896 215.5%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events in the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment and termination, mortality, and healthcare cost trends.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared

with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

-34 -

N\
n



NORTHERN SEIRRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2617

NOTE 11 - COMMITTED FUND BALANCE

As of June 30, 2017, the Disirict through action by its board of Directors has internally
committed portions of the unrestricted fund balance as follows:

Detail of Committed Fund Balance

Other Post-Employment Benefits b 100,000
Equipment Replacements / Depreciation 102,000
Leave Liability 56,000
Air Monitoring Program 80,000
Public Education Program 5,000
Total $ 343,000

NOTE 12 - RESTATEMENT OF JUNE 30, 2016 FUND BALANCE AND NET
POSITION

The District adjusted certain accounts to correct balances from prior years for prepaid expense,
accounts receivable and accounts payable. This adjustment has been treated as a restatement of
beginning fund balance and net position and is summarized below:

Fund Balance Net Position
Balance - June 30, 2016 per Audit $ 1,211,728 $ 261,095
Restatement - (38,710) (38,710)
Balance- As Restated $ 1,173,018 $ 222!385

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The District’s Board is made up of members of the Board of Supervisors of Nevada, Plumas, and
Sierra Counties. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, Nevada County contributed
$47,407, Plumas County contributed $9,603, and Sierra County contributed $1,555 to support the
District’s operations.

NOTE 14 — JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

The District participates in one joint venture under joint powers agreements (JPA’s) with the
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), a public entity risk pool established to
provide health, liability, property, and workers’ compensation insurance to its members. The
boards control the operations of the JPA’s including the selection of management and approval
of the operating budget, independent of any influence my the member districts beyond their
representation on the boards.

-35-

YA



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

571



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Budgeted Amounts Vanance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive / (Negative)
Revenue:
Permits & Fees $ 174,000 $ 174,000 $ 129,747 $ (44,253)
Intergovernmental Revenue 677,165 677,165 755,240 78,075
Interest Income 3,500 3,500 21,826 18,326
Other Income 1,600 1,600 4 001 2,401
Total Revenue 856,265 856,265 910,814 54,549
Expenditures:
Air Quality Management
Salaries 388,694 388,694 371,145 17,549
Benefits ' 175,994 175,994 195,860 (19,866)
Air Monitoring 15,000 15,000 11,509 3,491
Professional Fees 33,000 33,000 30,832 2,168
Commuaications 18,000 18,000 19,600 (1,600)
Travel 8,500 8,500 11,251 (2,751)
Office 5,000 5,000 9,753 (4,753)
Rent and Utilities 35,540 35,540 33,602 1,938
Repairs and Maintenance 3,500 3,500 7,434 (3,934)
Dues and Subscriptions 3,450 3,450 4,908 (1,458)
Insurance 8,000 8,000 16,355 (8,355)
Capital Outlay 44,000 44,000 39,503 4,497
Miscellaneous 8,220 8,220 18,185 (9,965)
Total Expenditures 746,898 746,898 769,937 (23,039)
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures $ 109,367 ~ § 109,367 140,877  § 77,588
e —— E————— m
Fund Balance, July 1 ___ 607,768
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 748,645
36 5%



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RESTRICTED FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Qsiginai Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive / (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue $ 828,275 $ 828,275 $ 907,368 $ 79,093
Interest Income 4,299 4,299 127 (4,172)
Total Revenue 832,574 832,574 907,495 74,921
Expenditures:
Air Quality Management
H & S Mitigation 105,300 (105,300)
AB 2776 Grants 451,092 210,510 81,287 129,223
Carl Moyer Diesel 250,281 250,281 247 345 2,936
Timber Program 19,989 19,989 95,000 (75,011)
AB 923 115,962 115,962 - 115,962
EPA Target Grant- Woodstove 398,400 398,400 273,973 124,427
Miscellaneous 5,500 5,500 - 5,500
Total Expenditures 1,241,224 1,000,642 802,905 197,737
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures _$ (408,650) 3 (168,068) 104,590 § (122,816)
Fund Balance, July 1 565,250
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 669,840
-37-



SCHEDULE OF THE NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGMENT'S

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

June 36,2017 June 30,2016 Junc 36, 2015

District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(As: 0.026640% 0.024315% 0.01162%
Districts Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
1iability (Asset) § 925,584 $ 751272 § 722,829
District's Covered-Employee Payrotl b 390,896 $ 369,089 § 396,315
District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its

Covered Employee Payroll 236.79% 203.55% 182.39%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net

Position as a Percentage of the Plan's total

Net Pension Liability 75.87% 78.00% 76.79%
Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer

Contributions $ 84,594 % 77,441 $ 64,684
Notes to Schedule:

Only the three fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

-38-

(x O



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGMENT'S
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 95,065 $ 60,900 $ 65,837
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution $ (88,034) (84,594) § (77,441)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ 7,031 $ (23694 § (11,604)
Covered Employee Payroll $ 390,896 $ 309,089 3 396,315
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered-employee Payroll 22.52% 22.92% 19.54%

Notes to Schedule:
Only the three fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

-39-

2



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

b o



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2017

YELLOW BOOK SECTION
internal Control — Significant Deficicncy

Finding 2017-1: Financial Statement Preparation

Criteria upon which audit finding is based (Legal Citation):

In accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards No. 122 (SAS 122), the District is
responsible for preparing complete and accurate financial statements, footnote disclosures, and
management’s discussion and analysis in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP).

Finding (Condition):

The District does not have policies and procedures in place to ensure that complete and accurate
financial statements, footnote disclosures, and management’s discussion and analysis are prepared
in accordance with GAAP prior to the annual audit. Management relies heavily upon the auditor
to recommend footnote disclosures for the financial statements and to prepare adjusting journal
entrics for approval in order to report financial information in accordance with GAAP.

Amount of Questioned Cost, How Computed and Prevalence:
None

Effect:
There is a risk that a financial statement misstatement may exist and not be prevented or detected
by the District’s system of internal control.

Cause:
This condition has always existed at the District, and is being reported in accordance with SAS
122.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the District hire a professional in governmental accounting on an ongoing
basis, to assist in the preparation of accounting records that are accurate and in accordance with
Governmental GAAP.

District's Response:
The Executive Director hired a part-time accountant (a professional in governmental accounting)

on an on-going basis, to assist in the preparation of accounting records that are accurate and in
accordance with Governmental GAAP.

AT e v

~
)\

-43 -



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2017

YELLOW BOOK SECTION
Internal Centrol — Significant Deficiency

Finding 2017-2: Lack of Segregation of Duties

Criteria upon which audit finding is based (Legal Citation):
Yellow Book paragraphs 5.11 —5.15 and Appendix I, SAS No. 122.

Finding (Condition):
An inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Amount of Questioned Cost, How Computed and Prevalence:
None.

Effect:
The Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District has exposure to risk of financial statement
misstatement and the potential risk for fraud.

Cauge:

Due to the number of personnel assigned to duties that involve access to the general ledger and
other accounting records and who also have custody of and responsibility for handling cash and
other assets, an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District hire a professional that
is proficient in Govemmental Accounting to review transactions, bank reconciliations and
journals. This individual should report to the board and might serve in a Treasurer capacity.

The control system should be designed so that one person cannot do any two of the following:
1) Record transactions to the general ledger
2) Have custody of cash (sign checks).
3) Authorize transactions.

District's Response:
The Executive Director has hired a part-time accountant (a professional in governmentai

accounting) to review transactions, bank reconciliations and journals. The part-time accountant
prepares quarterly and annual reports to the Board, records transactions to the general ledger and
does not have custody of cash or authorize transactions. No other employee records transactions
to the general ledger. The Executive Director and Deputy Director authorize transactions, but do
not record transactions to the general ledger or have the ability to sign checks. The County
Auditor signs checks and has no other responsibilities.

-44.- (g@



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
(FINDINGS FROM THE JUNE 30, 2016 AUDIT REPORT)
JUNE 39, 2017

Finding 2016-T

The District does not have policies and procedures in place to ensurc that complete and accurate
financial statements, and footnote disclosures prepared in accordance with GAAP prior to the
annual audit. Management relies upon the auditor to recommend footnote disclosures for the
financial statements and to prepare adjusting journal entries for approval in order to report
financial information in accordance with GAAP.

Status
Partially Implemented Sec current ycar finding 2017-1.

Finding 2016-2

Due to the number of personnel assigned to duties that involve access to the general ledger and
other accounting records and who also have custody of and responsibility for handling cash and
other assets. an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Status
Partially implemented. See current year finding 2017-2

-45 -



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
JUNE 30, 2017

Person Monitoring Cerrective Action Plan
Gretchen Bennitt, Air Poltution Control Officer

Finding 2017-1: Financial Statement Preparation

Finding (Condition)

The District does not have policies and procedures in place to ensure that complete and accurate
financial statements, footnote disclosures, and management’s discussion and analysis are prepared
in accordance with GAAP prior to the annual audit. Management relies heavily upon the auditor
to recommend footnote disclosures for the financial statements and to prepare adjusting journal
entries for approval in order to report financial information in accordance with GAAP.

Corrective Action Planned

SingletonAuman recommended that the Air District hire a professional in governmental
accounting on an ongoing basis, to assist in the preparation of accounting records that are accurate
and in accordance with Governmental GAAP.

The Executive Director has recommended to the Board of Director’s to hire a part-time accountant
on an ongoing basis. The Board will consider this at the next Board of Director’s meeting.
Additionally, the Executive Director has been working with SingletonAuman to ascertain specific
professional requirements needed for the hiring of the recommended governmental accounting
official.

Expected Completion Date
Ongoing,

Finding 2017-2: Lack of Segregation of Duties

Finding (Condition)
Due to the number of employees an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Corrective Action Planned
SingletonAuman recommended that the Air District hire a professional in governmental

accounting to review transactions, bank reconciliations, and journals.

The Executive Director has recommended to the Board of Director’s to hire a part-time accountant
on an ongoing basis. The Board will consider this at the next Board of Director’s meeting,
Additionally, the Executive Director has been working with Singleton Auman to ascertain specific

professional requirements needed for the hiring of the recommended governmental accounting
official.

Expected Completion Date
Ongoing.

LS



e e e e ———— AT

4-Sing| A
/5< ingletonAumanec
4 B FRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

Clay E. Singleton, CPA, MSAcc

RELORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
Grass Valley CA, 95945

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities and the major funds of the Northern Sierra Air Quality
Management District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the proceeding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal controls
that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design of operation of control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We found no deficiencies that we considered to be
material weaknesses.

Susanville: Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 www.s_alﬁ:gs.com 530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282

o



e S St B BT e

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit atiention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings
and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. See findings 2017-) and 2017-2.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

District’s Responsc te Findings

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District’s response was not subjected to the
audiiing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

Purpase of the Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an intcgral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully Submitted,

ﬂ/k—»—\_...j -

SingletonAuman
Susanville, CA
March 21, 2018

-

- (o



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: April 23, 2018

Agenda item: IV.C

Agenda Desctiption: Proposal from Clay Singleton, CPA to Conduct the Audit of

Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2018.

Issues:
SingletonAumanPC’s one year contract has expired. In the past, the District has taken
one of two choices upon an expiration of a contract;

1. Extend the contract of financial auditors, when warranted.

2. Release a Request for Proposal for a new auditor.

In the past few RFP releases, with increased auditing requirements, the District has
found a limited number of agencies willing to take on the auditing job for our small

district. Because of the increased audit requirements, costs have also increased
significantly.

Clay Singleton has expressed a desire to perform financial audits for the next fiscal

year. Clay has provided his proposal to conduct the District’s financial audit for the
next fiscal year (attached).

Requested Action:

1. Determine whether the Contract for SingletonAumanPC be extended for another
fiscal year.

2. If contract is extended, approve SingletonAumanPC'’s proposal and authorize the
Executive Director to sign a contract with SingletonAumanPC.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:

March 27, 2018 letter from Clay Singleton to Northern Sierra Air District Board of
Directors

SERVING THL COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA G C?



%S ngletonAU IManec John E. Auman, cpa

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, cPa, MSAce

ENGAGEMENT LETTER
March 27, 2018
To the Board of Directors
Northemn Sierra Air Quality Management District
PO Box 2509

Grass Valley, CA 95945

Dear Board Members,

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Narthern Sierra Air Quality
Management District for the year ended June 30, 2018,

As required by federal and state legal requirements, we are a Certified Public Accounting Firm, duly
authorized to practice, and licensed by the California State Board of Accountancy. License Number
COR5923.

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of Narthern Sierra Air Quality Management District as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2018.

Accounting standards generally accepted In the United States of Amarica provide for certain required
supplementary information (RSl), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement
Northem Sierra Air Quality Management District’s basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply
certain limited procedures to Northem Sierra Air Quality Management District's RSI in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will
not express an apinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
nat provide us with sufficient evidence to express an oplinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI
is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures,
but will not be audited: :

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

2) Required supplementary information under GASB 34.

3) Supplementary schedules required by the California State Controller.
Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairty
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepied accounting principles and
to report on the faimess of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United

Susan mes and will include tests of the accounting records of Narthemn Sierra Air Quality Management Dishic‘t: -

1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 86020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWW.s3-Ccpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282

70



and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a
written report upon completion of our audit of Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District's financial
statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of Northern Sierra Air Quality
Management District We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed.
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter
or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are ather than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue repotts, or may withdraw from this
engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing
of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.
if during our audit we become aware that Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District is subject to an
audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Audlt Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations
of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective,

Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting
abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate
level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility

as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we
are not engaged as auditors.

Our pracedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written representations from your attomneys
as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our
audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial



statements: compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other
responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internat Control

Our audit will inciude obtaining an understanding of the govemment and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient 1o assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to
test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and
fraud that are matenial to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting
from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. Our tests, If performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on
intarnal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued
pursuant to Govemnment Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under
AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District's compliance with
the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective
of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Other Services

We will prepare the Districts Annual Financial Transactions Report for the California State Controller's
Office (billed separately) for years ended June 30, 2018 based on information provided by you. We will
assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of the Organization in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. We will assist in
maintaining the Districts Depreciation Schedule. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit
under Govemment Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are
limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment,
reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as
assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including
evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met;
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and
properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible
for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of
contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making ail financial records and related information available to us
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with
(1) access to afl information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of
the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the govemment from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

e



Your respensibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsibie for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1)
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities inctude informing us ol your
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, reguiations,
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and

noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we
report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have
reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to make the audited financial statements
readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary
information is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the
written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information
in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content,
is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes),
and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for
providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

You agree to assume afl management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related
notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the
management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related
notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services
by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

We will provide 15 copies of our reports to Northen Sierra Air Quality Management District, however,
management is responsible for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted

by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be
made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of SingletonAuman PC and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the cognizant
agency, the State Controller's Office, or the General Accounting Office or its designee, a federal agency

72



providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality
review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of
any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the
supervision of SingletonAuman PC personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of
selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report
release date or for any additional penod requested by the cognizant agency. If we are aware that 3
federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the parties contesting
the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit on approximately June 1, 2018 and to issue our reports no later than
December 15, 2018. Clay Singleton, Principal is the engagement partner and is responsible for
supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.

Our professional fees are based on the time spent on an engagement at our standard hourly rates. Our
hourly rates are established in relation to the level of experience of the individual assigned to the audit.
We believe that our services, approach and technique provide the capability to achieve cost savings while
maintaining the highest quality standards. Our proposed fee includes all related expenses including travel
costs and 15 copies of the audit report. We will not charge for out-of-pocket expenses such as mileage or
per diem associated with this engagement.

The proposed fee for the audit of the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District for the year ending
June 30, 2018 is as follows:

For the Year Ended  Audit Fee
June 30, 2018 $12,400

*Single Audit Fee if required (if Federal Expenditures Exceed $500,000)
A Single Audit would add an additicnal $5,000 per year to the contract total.

Our audit proposal is based on the expectation that your books will be closed, balanced and in auditable
condition for the audit period. if during the course of the project the nature or scope of our work should
change, we would discuss such matters with you and any effects of our fee estimates. The estimated fees
are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. if significant additional time is necessary

for any reason, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new estimate before we incur any additional cost.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent quality conirol
review report. Our 2014 peer review report accompanies this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District and
believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any
questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter,
please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

.
=

Clay Singleton, Principal

SINGLETONAUMAN PC



RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Northern Siefra Air Quality Management District.
Management signature:

Title:

Date:

15






